CINCINNATI BELL INC Form 10-Q July 31, 2008 Table of Contents

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

X	QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
	ACT OF 1934
For	the Quarterly Period Ended June 30, 2008

••	TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
	ACT OF 1934
For	the transition period from to

Commission File Number 1-8519

CINCINNATI BELL INC.

Ohio (State of Incorporation)

31-1056105

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

221 East Fourth Street, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(513) 397-9900

(Registrant s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x No "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting company. See definitions of large accelerated filer , accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act:

Large accelerated filer x

Accelerated filer "

Non-accelerated filer " Smaller reporting company "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes "No x

At July 15, 2008, there were 235,529,532 common shares outstanding and 155,250 shares of 63/4% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock outstanding.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Description		Page
	PART I. Financial Information	
Item 1.	Financial Statements Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations (Unaudited) Three Months and Six Months Ended June 30, 2008 and 2007	1
	Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited) June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007	2
	Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited) Six Months Ended June 30, 2008 and 2007	3
	Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)	4
Item 2.	Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	23
Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	31
Item 4.	Controls and Procedures	32
	PART II. Other Information	
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	33
Item 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	33
Item 3.	<u>Defaults Upon Senior Securities</u>	33
Item 4.	Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders	33
Item 5.	Other Information	33
Item 6.	<u>Exhibits</u>	34
	<u>Signatures</u>	35

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

(Unaudited)

	Three Months Endo June 30, 2008 2007					ths Ended e 30, 2007
Revenue						
Services	\$ 3	0.00	\$ 28	8.7	\$ 597.2	\$ 570.6
Products		51.2	4	0.4	102.5	73.8
Total revenue	3	351.2	32	9.1	699.7	644.4
Costs and expenses						
Cost of services, excluding items below	1	06.3	10	3.0	212.8	199.6
Cost of products sold, excluding items below		53.7	4	2.3	106.0	78.8
Selling, general and administrative		72.2	6	5.8	142.3	131.3
Depreciation		36.4	3	6.0	72.5	71.5
Amortization		1.3		0.8	2.5	1.7
Restructuring charges		1.4		0.1	25.4	2.6
Asset impairment					1.2	
Total operating costs and expenses	2	271.3	24	8.0	562.7	485.5
Operating income		79.9		1.1	137.0	158.9
Interest expense		34.8	3	9.0	71.1	79.1
Other income, net		(0.2)	(0.2)	(1.4)	(2.2)
Income before income taxes		45.3	4	2.3	67.3	82.0
Income tax expense		19.7	1	8.1	28.8	35.3
Net income		25.6	2	4.2	38.5	46.7
Preferred stock dividends		2.6		2.6	5.2	5.2
Net income applicable to common shareowners	\$	23.0	\$ 2	1.6	\$ 33.3	\$ 41.5
Basic earnings per common share	\$	0.10	\$ 0	.09	\$ 0.14	\$ 0.17
Diluted earnings per common share	\$	0.09	\$ 0	.08	\$ 0.13	\$ 0.16
Weighted average common shares outstanding (in millions)	_	100	2.1	7 2	0440	0.45.0
Basic		240.9		7.3	244.0	247.2
Diluted	2	248.4	25	7.6	250.8	256.4

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Dollars in millions, except share amounts)

(Unaudited)

	June 30, 2008	Dec	ember 31, 2007
Assets			
Current assets			
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 21.4	\$	26.1
Receivables, less allowances of \$17.0 and \$17.1	182.1		176.5
Inventory, materials and supplies	26.9		31.2
Deferred income tax benefits, net	73.1		72.8
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	16.3		11.1
Total current assets	319.8		317.7
Property, plant and equipment, net	971.8		933.7
Goodwill	69.3		62.4
Intangible assets, net	130.0		121.2
Deferred income tax benefits, net	487.9		523.4
Other noncurrent assets	52.3		61.2
Total assets	\$ 2,031.1	\$	2,019.6
Liabilities and Shareowners Deficit			
Current liabilities			
Current portion of long-term debt	\$ 8.5	\$	7.8
Accounts payable	98.8		105.5
Unearned revenue and customer deposits	47.1		47.4
Accrued taxes Accrued interest	22.4 48.2		15.2 49.4
Accrued interest Accrued payroll and benefits	39.3		44.8
Other current liabilities	43.5		47.5
Other current natifices	43.3		47.3
Total current liabilities	307.8		317.6
Long-term debt, less current portion	1,989.1		2,001.9
Accrued pension and postretirement benefits	317.8		291.7
Other noncurrent liabilities	82.5		76.0
Total liabilities	2,697.2		2,687.2
Shareowners deficit			
Preferred stock, 2,357,299 shares authorized, 155,250 shares (3,105,000 depositary shares) of 6 ³ /4% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock issued and outstanding at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007;			
liquidation preference \$1,000 per share (\$50 per depositary share)	129.4		129.4
Common shares, \$.01 par value; 480,000,000 shares authorized; 256,939,028 and 256,652,787 shares issued;	,		
237,004,917 and 248,357,332 outstanding at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007	2.6		2.6
Additional paid-in capital	2,920.8		2,922.7

Accumulated deficit	(3,420.6)		(3,459.1)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss	(102.0)		(115.9)
Common shares in treasury, at cost: 19,934,111 and 8,295,455 shares at June 30, 2008 and December 31,			
2007	(196.3)		(147.3)
Total shareowners deficit	(666.1)		(667.6)
	(,		()
Total liabilities and shareowners deficit	\$ 2.031.1	\$	2.019.6
Total habilities and shareowners deficit	Ψ 2,031.1	Ψ	2,017.0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollars in millions)

(Unaudited)

	Six Mont June	
	2008	2007
Cash flows from operating activities		
Net income	\$ 38.5	\$ 46.7
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities		
Depreciation	72.5	71.5
Amortization	2.5	1.7
Provision for loss on receivables	8.6	7.4
Noncash interest expense	2.4	2.6
Deferred income tax expense, including valuation allowance change	27.1	32.6
Pension and other postretirement expense in excess of payments	47.9	14.9
Other, net	2.5	1.0
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions		
Increase in receivables	(12.6)	(0.7)
Decrease (increase) in inventory, materials, supplies, prepaids and other current assets	0.1	(14.8)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable	(4.6)	10.7
Decrease in accrued and other current liabilities	(5.2)	(16.8)
Decrease in other long-term assets	1.4	0.5
Increase (decrease) in other long-term liabilities	6.8	(2.2)
Net cash provided by operating activities	187.9	155.1
Cash flows from investing activities		
Capital expenditures	(103.2)	(90.3)
Acquisitions of businesses	(21.6)	(4.6)
Other, net	1.0	0.1
Net cash used in investing activities	(123.8)	(94.8)
Cash flows from financing activities		
Issuance of long-term debt		75.0
Increase in corporate credit facility, net	31.0	,
Repayment of debt	(44.6)	(183.2)
Issuance of common shares - exercise of stock options	0.3	2.3
Preferred stock dividends	(7.8)	(5.2)
Debt issuance costs		(1.3)
Common stock repurchase	(47.0)	Ì
Other, net	(0.7)	(0.6)
Net cash used in financing activities	(68.8)	(113.0)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents	(4.7)	(52.7)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year	26.1	79.4
Cash and Cash equivalents at Deginning Or year	20.1	17.4

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

\$ 21.4 \$ 26.7

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.

3

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

1. Description of Business and Accounting Policies

The following represents a summary of the business and accounting policies of Cincinnati Bell Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries (the Company). A more detailed presentation can be found in the Company s 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Description of Business The Company provides diversified telecommunications services through businesses in three segments: Wireline, Wireless and Technology Solutions. Refer to Note 8 for further discussion concerning the Company s segments.

Basis of Presentation The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and, in the opinion of management, include all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the results of operations, financial position, and cash flows for each period presented.

The adjustments referred to above are of a normal and recurring nature. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America have been condensed or omitted pursuant to SEC rules and regulations.

The Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2007 was derived from audited financial statements, but does not include all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the Company s 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K. Operating results for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2008 are not necessarily indicative of the results expected in subsequent quarters or for the year ending December 31, 2008.

Income Taxes The Company and its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and various state and local jurisdictions. With a few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state or local examinations for years before 2004. The IRS has completed its examination of the 2004 and 2005 tax years while 2006 is still under audit.

The Company has an unrecognized tax benefit liability of \$14.8 million at both June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007. The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate is \$14.6 million. The Company does not currently anticipate that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will change significantly over the next year.

The Company recognizes accrued penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. The Company recognizes accrued interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense. Accrued interest and penalties are insignificant at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007.

Regulatory Taxes The Company incurs federal regulatory taxes on certain revenue producing transactions. The Company is permitted to recover certain of these taxes by billing the customer; however, collections cannot exceed the amount due to the federal regulatory agency. These federal regulatory taxes are presented in sales and cost of services on a gross basis because, while the Company is required to pay the tax, it is not required to collect the tax from customers. The amount recorded as revenue for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 was \$4.2 million and \$7.9 million, respectively, and for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 was \$4.7 million and \$8.4 million, respectively. The amount expensed for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 was \$3.8 million and \$7.7 million, respectively, and for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 was \$5.4 million and \$9.6 million, respectively. The Company records all other taxes collected from customers on a net basis.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Stock-Based Compensation The Company values all share-based payments to employees at fair value on the date of grant and expenses this value over the applicable vesting period. The Company s policy for graded vesting awards is to recognize compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. For all share-based payments, an assumption is made for an estimated forfeiture rate based on the historical behavior of employees. The Company s practice has generally been to make its annual grant of stock options and time-based restricted awards in December and annual performance-based awards in the first quarter. In addition, the Company also has historically granted a smaller number of stock-based awards at various times during the year for directors, new employees, promotions and performance achievements.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, was issued in September 2006. The objective of the Statement is to define fair value, establish a framework for measuring fair value and expand disclosures about fair value measurements. The Company has adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 157 related to financial instruments as of January 1, 2008. Per FASB Staff Position 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157, implementation of SFAS No. 157 to non-financial assets and liabilities has been deferred until interim and annual periods beginning after November 15, 2008.

SFAS No. 157 establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:

Level 1 - Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets;

Level 2 - Inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (i.e., interest rates, yield curves, etc.), and inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means (market corroborated inputs); and

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that reflect the Company s determination of assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. These inputs are developed based on the best information available, including the Company s own data.

At June 30, 2008, the Company has financial instruments that are required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis as follows:

	June 30,			
(dollars in millions)	2008 Level	Level 2	Level 3	
Interest rate swap agreements	\$ 2.6 \$	\$ 2.6	\$	
Money market funds	16.8 16.8	3		
Deferred compensation plans	1.1 1.	l		

SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51, was issued in December 2007. SFAS No. 160 clarifies the classification of noncontrolling interests in consolidated statements of financial position and the accounting for and reporting of transactions between the reporting entity and holders of such noncontrolling interests. Under SFAS No. 160: (a) noncontrolling interests are considered equity and should be reported as an element of consolidated equity; (b) net income will encompass the total income of all consolidated subsidiaries; (c) there will be separate disclosure on the face of the income statement of the attribution of income between the controlling and noncontrolling interests; and (d) increases and decreases in the noncontrolling ownership interest amount will be accounted for as equity transactions. SFAS No. 160 will be effective for the first fiscal year beginning on or after December 15, 2008, and earlier application is prohibited. SFAS No. 160 is required to be adopted prospectively, except for reclassifying noncontrolling interests to equity, separate from the parent s shareholders—equity, in the consolidated statement of financial position and recasting consolidated net income (loss) to include net income (loss) attributable to both the controlling and noncontrolling interests, both of which are required to be adopted retrospectively. The Company has not yet assessed the impact of this Statement on the Company s financial statements.

SFAS No. 141(R), Business Combinations, was issued in December 2007. SFAS No. 141(R) requires that upon initially obtaining control, an acquirer will recognize 100% of the fair values of acquired assets, including goodwill, and assumed liabilities, with only limited exceptions, even if the acquirer has not acquired 100% of its target. Additionally, contingent consideration arrangements will be presented at fair value at the acquisition date and included on that basis in the purchase price consideration, and transaction costs will be expensed as incurred. SFAS No. 141(R) also modifies the recognition for preacquisition contingencies, such as environmental or legal issues, restructuring plans and acquired research and development value in purchase accounting. SFAS No. 141(R) amends SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, to require the acquirer to recognize changes in the amount of its deferred tax benefits that are recognizable because of a business combination

either in income from continuing operations in the period of the combination or directly in contributed capital, depending on the circumstances. SFAS No. 141(R) is effective for the first fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2008. The Company has not yet assessed the impact of this Statement on the Company s financial statements.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

SFAS No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, was issued in March 2008. SFAS No. 161 amends and expands the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, with the intent to provide users of financial statements with an enhanced understanding of: (a) how and why an entity uses derivative instruments; (b) how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS No. 133 and its related interpretations; and (c) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. SFAS No. 161 requires qualitative disclosures about objectives and strategies for using derivatives, quantitative disclosures about fair value amounts of and gains and losses on derivative instruments and disclosures about credit-risk-related contingent features in derivative instruments. SFAS No. 161 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. The Company has not yet assessed the impact of this Statement on the Company s financial statements.

SFAS No. 162, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), was issued in May 2008. SFAS No. 162 reorganizes the GAAP hierarchy to provide a consistent framework for determining the accounting principles that should be used when preparing U.S. GAAP financial statements. SFAS No. 162 is effective 60 days following the SEC s approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board amendments to AU Section 411, The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. The Company has not yet assessed the impact of this Statement on the Company s financial statements.

2. Acquisitions of Businesses

Century Tel

In June 2008, the Company purchased the Dayton, Ohio operations of CenturyTel for a purchase price of \$1.5 million, which was primarily allocated to property, plant and equipment. The purchase includes access lines to small and medium-size customers and fiber network throughout the Dayton metro area. The Company funded the purchase with its available cash. The financial results have been included in the Wireline segment and were immaterial to the Company s financial statements for the three months ended June 30, 2008. The preliminary purchase price allocation for this transaction may be adjusted upon the completion of the Company s valuation of the related assets and liabilities of the business.

eGIX Inc.

In February 2008, the Company purchased eGIX Inc. (eGIX), a Competitive Local Exchange Carrier provider of voice and long distance services to business customers in Indiana and Illinois, for \$18.1 million and contingent consideration up to \$5.2 million. The Company funded the purchase with its Corporate credit facility. The purchase price was primarily allocated to customer relationship intangible assets for \$7 million, goodwill for \$6 million, and property, plant and equipment for \$5 million. The Company anticipates both the goodwill and intangible assets to be fully deductible for tax purposes. The financial results have been included in the Wireline segment and were immaterial to the Company s financial statements for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008. The preliminary purchase price allocation for this transaction may be adjusted upon completion of the Company s valuation of the related assets and liabilities of the business.

6

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

3. Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share (EPS) is based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that would occur if common stock equivalents were exercised or converted to common stock but only to the extent that they are considered dilutive to the Company s earnings. The following table is a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted EPS computations for the following periods:

	Three Months Ended June 30,			June 30,					
(in millions, except per share amounts)	- 2	2008	- :	2007	20	08	2007		
Numerator:									
Net income	\$	25.6	\$	24.2	\$ 3	38.5	\$ 46	5.7	
Preferred stock dividends		2.6		2.6		5.2	4	5.2	
Numerator for basic and diluted EPS	\$	23.0	\$	21.6	\$ 3	33.3	\$ 41	1.5	
Denominator:									
Denominator for basic EPS - weighted average common shares outstanding		240.9		247.3	24	14.0	247	7.2	
Warrants		5.3		7.9		5.0	7	7.1	
Stock-based compensation arrangements		2.2		2.4		1.8	2	2.1	
Denominator for diluted EPS		248.4		257.6	25	50.8	256	5.4	
Basic earnings per common share	\$	0.10	\$	0.09	\$ (0.14	\$ 0.	17	
Diluted earnings per common share	\$	0.09	\$	0.08	\$ (0.13	\$ 0.	16	
Potentially issuable common shares excluded from denominator for diluted EPS due to anti-dilutive effect		38.2		32.9	3	38.8	34	4.1	

4. Comprehensive Income

(dollars in millions)		Ionths Ended une 30,		ths Ended e 30,
		2007	2008	2007
Net income	\$ 25.	5 \$ 24.2	\$ 38.5	\$ 46.7
Amortization of pension and postretirement costs, net of taxes	1.:	2 3.9	3.3	7.6
Remeasurement of pension and postretirement liabilities, net of taxes			10.6	
Comprehensive income	\$ 26	8 \$ 281	\$ 52.4	\$ 543

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

5. Debt and Financial Instruments

The Company s debt consists of the following:

(dollars in millions)	June 30, 2008	Dec	cember 31, 2007
Current portion of long-term debt:			
Credit facility, Tranche B Term Loan	\$ 4.0	\$	4.0
Capital lease obligations and other debt	4.5		3.8
Current portion of long-term debt	8.5		7.8
Long-term debt, less current portion:			
Credit facility, revolver	86.0		55.0
Credit facility, Tranche B Term Loan	205.0		207.0
7 ¹ /4% Senior Notes due 2013	470.5		470.5
8 ³ /8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014*	595.3		637.4
7% Senior Notes due 2015*	250.6		250.6
7 ¹ /4% Senior Notes due 2023	50.0		50.0
Accounts receivable securitization facility	75.0		75.0
Various Cincinnati Bell Telephone notes	230.0		230.0
Capital lease obligations and other debt	26.2		25.8
	1,988.6		2,001.3
Net unamortized premiums	0.5		0.6
•			
Long-term debt, less current portion	1,989.1		2,001.9
Total debt	\$ 1,997.6	\$	2,009.7

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, the Company purchased and extinguished \$2.0 million and \$41.6 million, respectively, of $8^{3}/_{8}$ % Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014. The Company recognized a gain on extinguishment of debt of \$0.1 million and \$1.2 million respectively, for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, which is included in Other income, net on the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations.

In March 2007, the Company and certain subsidiaries entered into an accounts receivable securitization facility. Under the receivables facility, certain subsidiaries sell their respective trade receivables on a continuous basis to CB Funding LLC (CBF). Although CBF is a wholly-owned consolidated subsidiary of the Company, CBF is legally separate from the Company and each of the Company s other subsidiaries. Upon and after the sale or contribution of the accounts receivable to CBF, such accounts receivable are legally assets of CBF, and as such are not available to creditors of other subsidiaries or the parent company.

The Company is exposed to the impact of interest rate fluctuations on its indebtedness. The Company attempts to maintain an optimal balance of fixed rate and variable rate indebtedness in order to attain low overall borrowing costs over time while mitigating exposure to interest rate fluctuations. The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage its balance of fixed rate and variable rate indebtedness. In 2004 and 2005, the Company entered into long-term interest rate swaps with notional amounts totaling \$450 million to change the fixed rate nature of a portion of the 7% Notes and the $8\,^3/_8\%$ Notes to floating rate debt (long-term interest rate swaps). These long-term interest rate swaps qualify for fair value hedge accounting. As of June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the fair value of these interest rate swap contracts was an asset of \$2.5 million and \$2.9 million, respectively, for which the Company s underlying hedged debt is adjusted by the same corresponding value in

^{*} The face amount of these notes has been adjusted for the fair value of interest rate swaps classified as fair value derivatives at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007.

accordance with SFAS No. 133.

In May 2008, the Company entered into six-month interest rate swap contracts with notional amounts totaling \$450 million, which effectively fixed the floating interest rates for the second half of 2008 on the long-term interest rate swaps. The Company did not designate these swaps as hedging instruments under SFAS No. 133, which results in the change in the fair value of these instruments being recognized in earnings during each period. At June 30, 2008, the fair value of these interest rate swap contracts was an asset of \$0.1 million with the corresponding value included in Other income, net in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations.

8

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Subsequent Event

In July 2008, the Company entered into additional six-month interest rate swap contracts with notional amounts totaling \$450 million, which effectively fixed the floating interest rates in the first half of 2009 on the long-term interest rate swaps. The Company elected not to designate these swaps as hedging instruments under SFAS No. 133, which will result in the change in the fair value of these instruments being recognized in earnings during each period.

6. Restructuring Charges

	Balance				Balance								Bal	lance
	Dece	mber 31	,				Maı	ch 31,					Jur	ne 30,
Restructuring reserve (dollars in millions):	2	2007	Income	Expense	Utiliz	zations	2	800	Ex	pense	Utiliz	zations	2	008
2007-2008 plan	\$	22.9	\$ (14.4)	\$	\$	(0.2)	\$	8.3	\$	0.1	\$	(0.1)	\$	8.3
2001 plan		6.2		0.1		(0.2)		6.1		0.1		(0.3)		5.9
2007-2008 Restructuring														

In the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company announced a restructuring plan to reduce costs and increase operational efficiencies. As a result, the Company incurred restructuring charges totaling \$37.5 million for the three months ended December 31, 2007 and \$25.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 composed of the following:

Employee separation benefits In the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company determined a need to reduce its headcount over the next five years to conform its Wireline operations to the decreased access lines being served by the Company. In the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company recorded severance liabilities of \$22.9 million, based on the Company s probable and estimable liabilities under its written severance plans, to reduce headcount to planned levels. The number of employees included in the severance liability as of December 31, 2007 was reduced for management retirements to occur as a result of the special termination pension and postretirement benefits accepted as of December 31, 2007. However, the union retirements to occur as a result of the special termination pension and postretirement benefits agreed to in the first quarter of 2008 were not considered in calculating the December 31, 2007 severance liability because this agreement did not occur until after December 31, 2007. As a result of 284 union employees accepting the special termination benefits in the first quarter of 2008, expense for special termination pension and postretirement benefits increased by \$22.1 million in the first quarter of 2008, but caused an offsetting reduction to the number of employees to be terminated through severance, and reduced the Company s severance liability by \$14.4 million. The Company accrued an additional \$0.1 million in the second quarter of 2008 for the 2007-2008 plan.

Special termination pension and postretirement benefits The Company offered and, by December 31, 2007, 105 management employees accepted special termination benefits totaling \$12 million. The Company determined that \$8.2 million of these benefits had been earned through December 31, 2007 under SFAS No. 88, and this amount was therefore accrued as of December 31, 2007. In the first quarter of 2008, the Company reached agreement with its union workforce on a new three-year labor agreement. As part of this agreement, the Company offered and, by March 31, 2008, 284 union employees accepted special termination benefits totaling \$25 million. The Company determined that \$22.1 million of these benefits had been earned through March 31, 2008 and this amount was therefore accrued as of March 31, 2008. Remaining special termination benefits for both union and management employees are subject to future service requirements as determined by the Company and will be amortized to expense over the future service period. The Company estimates these amounts to be approximately \$5 million for 2008, which includes \$1.3 million and \$2.0 million, respectively, expensed during the three months and six months ended June 30, 2008 for both union and management employees, and approximately \$2 million for 2009.

Pension and postretirement curtailment charges Management terminations contemplated above represent 10% of plan service years for the management pension plan and 15% of plan service years for the management postretirement plan, resulting in a pension and postretirement plan curtailment charge of \$6.4 million in the fourth quarter of 2007. Union terminations contemplated above represent approximately 11% of the plan service years for both the pension and postretirement plans, resulting in a curtailment charge of \$15.5 million for the pension and postretirement plans in the first quarter of 2008.

For the six months ended June 30, 2008, the Company accrued restructuring expense of \$24.4 million for the Wireline segment and \$0.4 million for each of the Wireless and the Technology Solutions segments. The restructuring reserve included in Other current liabilities, was \$1.8 million and \$4.5 million at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively, and \$6.5 million and \$18.4 million was included in Other noncurrent liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively. The special termination benefits and curtailment charges are included in Accrued pension and postretirement benefits in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet at June 30, 2008. See Note 7 to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion relating to the special termination pension and postretirement benefits and the curtailment charge.

9

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

2001 Restructuring

In 2001, the Company adopted a restructuring plan which included initiatives to consolidate data centers, reduce the Company s expense structure, exit the network construction business, eliminate other non-strategic operations, and merge the digital subscriber line and certain dial-up Internet operations into the Company s other operations. The Company completed the plan as of December 31, 2002, except for certain lease obligations, which are expected to continue through June 2015.

At June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, \$1.3 million of the reserve balance was included in Other current liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. The reserve included in Other noncurrent liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets was \$4.6 million and \$4.9 million at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.

10

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

7. Pensions and Postretirement Plans

The following information relates to all Company noncontributory defined benefit pension plans, postretirement health care, and life insurance benefit plans.

As a result of the acceptance of special termination benefits by certain retirement eligible union employees in the first quarter of 2008 (see Note 6), the Company determined a curtailment charge associated with its union pension and postretirement plans was required due to the significant decrease in the expected future service years. The curtailment charge for the pension and the postretirement plans for the six months ended June 30, 2008, consisted of both an increase in the benefit obligations of \$2.2 million and \$12.5 million and the acceleration of unrecognized prior service cost of \$0.9 million and \$(0.1) million, respectively.

As a result of the new union labor agreement (see Note 6) and curtailment in the first quarter of 2008, the Company remeasured only its union pension and postretirement obligations using revised assumptions, including modified retiree benefit payment assumptions and a discount rate of 6.40%. As a result of the remeasurement, the Company s pension and postretirement obligations were reduced by approximately \$17 million, deferred tax assets were reduced for the related tax effect by \$6 million, and equity was increased by \$11 million.

Pension and postretirement benefit costs are as follows:

		n Benefits Three Months F	Postretirement ar Other Benefits Ended June 30,		
(dollars in millions)	2008	2007	2008	2007	
Service cost	\$ 2.2	\$ 2.1	\$ 0.4	\$ 0.9	
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation	7.3	7.0	4.5	5.2	
Expected return on plan assets	(8.7)	(8.2)	(0.5)	(1.0)	
Amortization of:					
Transition obligation			0.4	1.1	
Prior service cost	0.2	0.8	(0.1)	1.9	
Actuarial loss	0.7	1.0	0.9	1.1	
Special termination benefit	1.1		0.2		
	\$ 2.8	\$ 2.7	\$ 5.8	\$ 9.2	

		Pension Benefits Six Months E		
(dollars in millions)	2008	2007	2008	2007
Service cost	\$ 4.5	\$ 4.2	\$ 1.0	\$ 1.7
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation	14.2	13.9	9.3	10.5
Expected return on plan assets	(17.5)	(16.5)	(1.0)	(2.0)
Amortization of:				
Transition obligation			1.3	2.1
Prior service cost	0.3	1.6	0.4	3.9
Actuarial loss	1.4	2.1	1.9	2.2
Special termination benefit	23.7		0.4	
Curtailment charge	3.1		12.4	
	\$ 29.7	\$ 5.3	\$ 25.7	\$ 18.4

Table of Contents 19

11

Total assets

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

8. Business Segment Information

The Company operates in the following three segments: Wireline, Wireless and Technology Solutions. The Wireline segment provides local voice, data, long-distance and other services to customers primarily in southwestern Ohio, northern Kentucky, and southeastern Indiana. The Wireless segment provides advanced, digital voice and data communications services and sales of related communications equipment to customers in the Greater Cincinnati and Dayton, Ohio operating areas. The Technology Solutions segment provides a range of fully managed and outsourced IT and telecommunications services and offers solutions that combine data center collocation services along with the sale, installation, and maintenance of major branded IT and telephony equipment.

Certain corporate administrative expenses have been allocated to segments based upon the nature of the expense and the relative size of the segment.

The Company s business segment information is as follows:

(dollars in millions)		Three Months Ended June 30, 2008 2007			Six Months Ended June 30, 2008 2007	
Revenue						
Wireline	\$	202.5	\$	204.1	\$ 405.1	\$ 407.8
Wireless		78.3		73.5	156.8	142.0
Technology Solutions		78.5		57.5	153.2	106.0
Intersegment		(8.1)		(6.0)	(15.4)	(11.4)
Total revenue	\$	351.2	\$	329.1	\$ 699.7	\$ 644.4
Intersegment revenue						
Wireline	\$	6.4	\$	5.1	\$ 12.3	\$ 9.7
Wireless		0.8		0.6	1.6	1.2
Technology Solutions		0.9		0.3	1.5	0.5
Total intersegment revenue	\$	8.1	\$	6.0	\$ 15.4	\$ 11.4
Operating income						
Wireline	\$	70.2	\$	72.0	\$ 116.9	\$ 144.0
Wireless		12.3		10.3	24.6	17.9
Technology Solutions		4.3		4.0	7.5	6.5
Corporate		(6.9)		(5.2)	(12.0)	(9.5)
Total operating income	\$	79.9	\$	81.1	\$ 137.0	\$ 158.9
		June 30, 2008		cember 31, 2007		
Assets		2000		4007		
Wireline	\$	696.6	\$	684.5		
Wireless	Ψ	368.9	Ψ	369.3		
Technology Solutions		283.6		243.2		
Corporate and eliminations		682.0		722.6		
Corporate and Chiminatons		002.0		722.0		
	Φ.	021.1	d.	2.010.6		

Table of Contents 20

\$ 2,031.1

\$

2,019.6

12

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

9. Stock-Based Compensation Plans

Stock options

The following table summarizes stock option activity for the six months ended June 30, 2008:

(in thousands, except per share amounts)	Shares	Avera Pr	eighted- ge Exercise ices Per Share	Weighted- Average Contractual Life in Years
Options outstanding at January 1, 2008	20,625	\$	10.76	4.6
Granted	712		3.81	
Exercised	(81)		3.86	
Expired	(1,313)		11.50	
Options outstanding at June 30, 2008	19,943	\$	10.48	4.5
Options exercisable at June 30, 2008	17,690	\$	11.25	3.9

During the six months ended June 30, 2008, the Company granted performance-based stock options, which vest over four years upon the achievement of certain performance-based objectives. The Company recognized compensation expense of \$0.4 million related to stock options for the three months ended June 30, 2008, \$0.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008, \$0.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2007 and \$0.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007. As of June 30, 2008, there was \$2.6 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to non-vested stock options. This expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately two years. At June 30, 2008, the aggregate intrinsic value of stock options outstanding and exercisable was approximately \$1.4 million and \$1.3 million, respectively.

The weighted average fair values at the date of grant were estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

	Six Mo	nths
	Ended Ju	ıne 30,
	2008	2007
Expected volatility	31.3%	28.9%
Risk-free interest rate	2.8%	4.6%
Expected holding period - years	5	5
Expected dividends	0.0%	0.0%
Weighted-average grant date fair value	\$ 1.24	\$ 1.69

The expected volatility assumption used in the Black-Scholes pricing model was based on historical volatility. The risk-free interest rate was based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The expected holding period was estimated using the historical exercise behavior of employees and adjusted for abnormal activity. Expected dividends are based on the Company s history of paying dividends, as well as restrictions in place under the Company s debt covenants.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Performance-based awards

(in thousands, except per share amounts)	Shares	Averag Date Fa	ghted- ge Grant air Value Share
Non-vested as of January 1, 2008	2,932	\$	4.75
Granted*	1,438		3.98
Vested	(550)		4.51
Forfeited	(489)		4.30
Non-vested at June 30, 2008	3,331	\$	4.52

Time-based restricted awards

		Av G	ighted- erage rant air Value
(in thousands, except per share amounts)	Shares	Per	Share
Non-vested as of January 1, 2008	375	\$	4.87
Granted	60		4.69
Vested	(1)		4.83
Forfeited	(13)		4.81
Non-vested at June 30, 2008	421	\$	4.85

Awards granted generally vest in one-third increments over a period of three years. The Company recognized expense related to time-based restricted awards of \$0.2 million for three months ended June 30, 2008, \$0.3 million for six months ended June 30, 2008 and \$0.1 million for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2007. As of June 30, 2008, there was \$1.3 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to these shares. This expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately two years.

^{*} Assumes the maximum number of awards that can be earned if the performance conditions are achieved. Awards granted generally vest over three to four years and upon the achievement of certain performance-based objectives. The Company recognized expense for performance-based awards of \$1.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008, \$2.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008, \$0.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2007 and \$1.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007. As of June 30, 2008, there was \$7.4 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to performance-based awards. This expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately two years.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

10. Supplemental Guarantor Information Cincinnati Bell Telephone Notes

Cincinnati Bell Telephone Company LLC (CBT), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cincinnati Bell Inc. (the Parent Company or CBI), has \$230 million in notes outstanding that are guaranteed by the Parent Company and no other subsidiaries of the Parent Company. The guarantee is full and unconditional. The Parent Company s subsidiaries generate substantially all of its income and cash flow and generally distribute or advance the funds necessary to meet the Parent Company s debt service obligations. Separately, in connection with a fifteen year contract for 25,000 square feet of data center space between Cincinnati Bell Technology Solutions Inc. (CBTS), which is a non-guarantor subsidiary of CBI, and a data center customer, CBI has guaranteed the performance obligations of CBTS in relation to providing the data center space and managed services under that long-term contract.

The following information sets forth the Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations and Cash Flows for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 and Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 of (1) the Parent Company, as the guarantor (2) Cincinnati Bell Telephone Company LLC, as the issuer, and (3) the non-guarantor subsidiaries on a combined basis:

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

	Parent	Three Months Ended June 30, 2008 rent Other			
(dollars in millions)	(Guarantor)	CBT	(Non-guarantors)	Eliminations	Total
Revenue	\$	\$ 180.8	\$ 183.0	\$ (12.6)	\$ 351.2
Operating costs and expenses	6.5	116.5	160.9	(12.6)	271.3
Operating income (loss)	(6.5)	64.3	22.1		79.9
Interest expense	29.9	3.8	6.5	(5.4)	34.8
Other expense (income), net	(5.4)	1.7	(1.9)	5.4	(0.2)
Income (loss) before income taxes	(31.0)	58.8	17.5		45.3
Income tax expense (benefit)	(7.0)	19.5	7.2		19.7
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of tax	49.6			(49.6)	
Net income	25.6	39.3	10.3	(49.6)	25.6
Preferred stock dividends	2.6				2.6
Net income applicable to common shareowners	\$ 23.0	\$ 39.3	\$ 10.3	\$ (49.6)	\$ 23.0

	Three Months Ended June 30, 2007					
	Parent		Other			
	(Guarantor)	CBT	(Non-guarantors)	Eliminations	Total	
Revenue	\$	\$ 186.7	\$ 152.5	\$ (10.1)	\$ 329.1	
Operating costs and expenses	6.0	121.4	130.7	(10.1)	248.0	
Operating income (loss)	(6.0)	65.3	21.8		81.1	
Interest expense	34.1	4.1	8.5	(7.7)	39.0	
Other expense (income), net	(8.1)	1.8	(0.9)	7.0	(0.2)	
Income (loss) before income taxes	(32.0)	59.4	14.2	0.7	42.3	
Income tax expense (benefit)	(7.5)	21.0	4.6		18.1	
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of tax	48.7			(48.7)		

Net income	24.2	38.4	9.6	(48.0)	24.2
Preferred stock dividends	2.6				2.6
Net income applicable to common shareowners	\$ 21.6	\$ 38.4	\$ 9.6	\$ (48.0)	\$ 21.6

Form 10-Q Part II Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

	Six Months Ended June 30, 2008 Parent Other						
(dollars in millions)	(Guarantor)	CBT	(Non-	guarantors)	Elin	ninations	Total
Revenue	\$	\$ 362.1	\$	362.2	\$	(24.6)	\$ 699.7
Operating costs and expenses	11.4	257.6		318.3		(24.6)	562.7
Operating income (loss)	(11.4)	104.5		43.9			137.0
Interest expense	61.8	7.4		12.5		(10.6)	71.1
Other expense (income), net	(12.2)	3.8		(3.6)		10.6	(1.4)
Income (loss) before income taxes	(61.0)	93.3		35.0			67.3
Income tax expense (benefit)	(16.0)	32.3		12.5			28.8
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of tax	83.5					(83.5)	
Net income	38.5	61.0		22.5		(83.5)	38.5
Preferred stock dividends	5.2						5.2
Net income applicable to common shareowners	\$ 33.3	\$ 61.0	\$	22.5	\$	(83.5)	\$ 33.3

	Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 Parent Other				
	(Guarantor)	CBT	(Non-guarantors)	Eliminations	Total
Revenue	\$	\$ 374.1	\$ 289.8	\$ (19.5)	\$ 644.4
Operating costs and expenses	10.5	242.7	251.8	(19.5)	485.5
Operating income (loss)	(10.5)	131.4	38.0		158.9
Interest expense	70.8	8.3	15.1	(15.1)	79.1
Other expense (income), net	(18.1)	1.8	(0.3)	14.4	(2.2)
Income (loss) before income taxes	(63.2)	121.3	23.2	0.7	82.0
Income tax expense (benefit)	(15.8)	43.0	8.1		35.3
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of tax	94.1			(94.1)	
Net income	46.7	78.3	15.1	(93.4)	46.7
Preferred stock dividends	5.2				5.2
Net income applicable to common shareowners	\$ 41.5	\$ 78.3	\$ 15.1	\$ (93.4)	\$ 41.5

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets

		As of June 30, 2008									
	Parent		Other								
(dollars in millions)	(Guarantor)	CBT	(Non-guarantors)	Eliminations	Total						
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 18.9	\$ 1.0	\$ 1.5	\$	\$ 21.4						
Receivables, net	2.0		180.1		182.1						
Other current assets	18.6	29.3	89.9	(21.5)	116.3						
Total current assets	39.5	30.3	271.5	(21.5)	319.8						
Property, plant and equipment, net	0.4	586.3	385.1		971.8						
Goodwill and intangibles, net		3.2	196.1		199.3						
Investments in and advances to subsidiaries	1,057.8			(1,057.8)							
Other noncurrent assets	304.7	17.7	243.4	(25.6)	540.2						
Total assets	\$ 1,402.4	\$ 637.5	\$ 1,096.1	\$ (1,104.9)	\$ 2,031.1						
Current portion of long-term debt	\$ 4.0	\$ 0.6	\$ 3.9	\$	\$ 8.5						
Accounts payable		37.1	61.7		98.8						
Other current liabilities	83.9	63.5	54.4	(1.3)	200.5						
Total current liabilities	87.9	101.2	120.0	(1.3)	307.8						
Long-term debt, less current portion	1,658.3	235.3	95.5		1,989.1						
Other noncurrent liabilities	322.3	39.3	84.5	(45.8)	400.3						
Intercompany payables		10.6	465.6	(476.2)							
Total liabilities	2,068.5	386.4	765.6	(523.3)	2,697.2						
Shareowners equity (deficit)	(666.1)	251.1	330.5	(581.6)	(666.1)						
Total liabilities and shareowners equity (deficit)	\$ 1,402.4	\$ 637.5	\$ 1,096.1	\$ (1,104.9)	\$ 2,031.1						

	Parent		As of December 31 Other		
	(Guarante		(Non-guarantors)) Eliminations	Total
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 23.	6 \$ 1.9	\$ 0.6	\$	\$ 26.1
Receivables, net	0.	1	176.4		176.5
Other current assets	14.	9 28.5	90.0	(18.3)	115.1
Total current assets	38.	6 30.4	267.0	(18.3)	317.7
Property, plant and equipment, net	0.	3 590.1	343.3		933.7
Goodwill and intangibles, net		3.4	180.2		183.6
Investments in and advances to subsidiaries	1,036.	4		(1,036.4)	
Other noncurrent assets	319.	8 16.0	279.9	(31.1)	584.6
Total assets	\$ 1,395.	1 \$639.9	\$ 1,070.4	\$ (1,085.8)	\$ 2,019.6
Current portion of long-term debt	\$ 4.	0 \$ 0.6	\$ 3.2	\$	\$ 7.8
Accounts payable		40.7	64.8		105.5
Other current liabilities	90.	8 65.1	48.4		204.3

Edgar Filing: CINCINNATI BELL INC - Form 10-Q

Total current liabilities	94.8	106.4	116.4		317.6
Long-term debt, less current portion	1,671.4	235.6	94.9		2,001.9
Other noncurrent liabilities	296.5	61.2	59.4	(49.4)	367.7
Intercompany payables		14.2	472.0	(486.2)	
Total liabilities	2,062.7	417.4	742.7	(535.6)	2,687.2
Shareowners equity (deficit)	(667.6)	222.5	327.7	(550.2)	(667.6)
Total liabilities and shareowners equity (deficit)	\$ 1,395.1	\$ 639.9	\$ 1,070.4	\$ (1,085.8)	\$ 2,019.6

Ending cash and cash equivalents

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

	Parent	Six N	Ionths Ended June 30 Other		
(dollars in millions)	(Guarantor)	CBT	(Non-guarantors)	Eliminations	Total
Cash flows provided by operating activities	\$	\$ 82.1	\$ 105.8	\$	\$ 187.9
Capital expenditures	(0.3)	(44.5)	(58.4)		(103.2)
Acquisitions of businesses	(0.0)	(2.3)	(19.3)		(21.6)
Other investing activities	0.1	0.3	0.6		1.0
<i>g</i>					
Cash flows used in investing activities	(0.2)	(46.5)	(77.1)		(123.8)
cash nows used in investing activities	(0.2)	(40.5)	(77.1)		(123.0)
	(1.6	(2(2)	(25.4)		
Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net	61.6	(36.2)	(25.4)		21.0
Increase in corporate credit facility, net	31.0	(0.2)	(2.4)		31.0
Repayment of debt	(41.9)	(0.3)	(2.4)		(44.6)
Common stock repurchase	(47.0)				(47.0)
Other financing activities	(8.2)				(8.2)
Cash flows used in financing activities	(4.5)	(36.5)	(27.8)		(68.8)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	(4.7)	(0.9)	0.9		(4.7)
Beginning cash and cash equivalents	23.6	1.9	0.6		26.1
Ending cash and cash equivalents	\$ 18.9	\$ 1.0	\$ 1.5	\$	\$ 21.4
			,	•	
		Siv N	Ionths Ended June 30		
	Parent	DIA IV	Other	, 2007	
	(Guarantor)	CBT	(Non-guarantors)	Eliminations	Total
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities	(Guarantor) \$ (33.2)	CBT \$ 181.7		Eliminations \$	Total \$ 155.1
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities	,		(Non-guarantors)		
	,	\$ 181.7	(Non-guarantors) \$ 6.6		\$ 155.1
Capital expenditures	,	\$ 181.7 (47.5)	(Non-guarantors)		\$ 155.1 (90.3)
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business	,	\$ 181.7 (47.5) (4.6)	(Non-guarantors) \$ 6.6 (42.8)		\$ 155.1 (90.3) (4.6)
Capital expenditures	,	\$ 181.7 (47.5)	(Non-guarantors) \$ 6.6		\$ 155.1 (90.3)
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business Other investing activities	,	\$ 181.7 (47.5) (4.6) 0.6	(Non-guarantors) \$ 6.6 (42.8) (0.5)		\$ 155.1 (90.3) (4.6) 0.1
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business	,	\$ 181.7 (47.5) (4.6)	(Non-guarantors) \$ 6.6 (42.8)		\$ 155.1 (90.3) (4.6)
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business Other investing activities Cash flows used in investing activities	\$ (33.2)	\$ 181.7 (47.5) (4.6) 0.6 (51.5)	(Non-guarantors) \$ 6.6 (42.8) (0.5) (43.3)		\$ 155.1 (90.3) (4.6) 0.1
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business Other investing activities Cash flows used in investing activities Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net	,	\$ 181.7 (47.5) (4.6) 0.6	(Non-guarantors) \$ 6.6 (42.8) (0.5) (43.3)		\$ 155.1 (90.3) (4.6) 0.1 (94.8)
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business Other investing activities Cash flows used in investing activities Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net Issuance of debt	\$ (33.2)	\$ 181.7 (47.5) (4.6) 0.6 (51.5) (130.7)	(Non-guarantors) \$ 6.6 (42.8) (0.5) (43.3) (37.3) 75.0		\$ 155.1 (90.3) (4.6) 0.1 (94.8)
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business Other investing activities Cash flows used in investing activities Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net Issuance of debt Repayment of debt	\$ (33.2) 168.0 (182.0)	\$ 181.7 (47.5) (4.6) 0.6 (51.5)	(Non-guarantors) \$ 6.6 (42.8) (0.5) (43.3) (37.3) 75.0 (0.6)		\$ 155.1 (90.3) (4.6) 0.1 (94.8) 75.0 (183.2)
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business Other investing activities Cash flows used in investing activities Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net Issuance of debt	\$ (33.2)	\$ 181.7 (47.5) (4.6) 0.6 (51.5) (130.7)	(Non-guarantors) \$ 6.6 (42.8) (0.5) (43.3) (37.3) 75.0		\$ 155.1 (90.3) (4.6) 0.1 (94.8)
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business Other investing activities Cash flows used in investing activities Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net Issuance of debt Repayment of debt Other financing activities	\$ (33.2) 168.0 (182.0) (3.5)	\$ 181.7 (47.5) (4.6) 0.6 (51.5) (130.7) (0.6)	(Non-guarantors) \$ 6.6 (42.8) (0.5) (43.3) (37.3) 75.0 (0.6) (1.3)		\$ 155.1 (90.3) (4.6) 0.1 (94.8) 75.0 (183.2) (4.8)
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business Other investing activities Cash flows used in investing activities Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net Issuance of debt Repayment of debt	\$ (33.2) 168.0 (182.0)	\$ 181.7 (47.5) (4.6) 0.6 (51.5) (130.7)	(Non-guarantors) \$ 6.6 (42.8) (0.5) (43.3) (37.3) 75.0 (0.6)		\$ 155.1 (90.3) (4.6) 0.1 (94.8) 75.0 (183.2)
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business Other investing activities Cash flows used in investing activities Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net Issuance of debt Repayment of debt Other financing activities	\$ (33.2) 168.0 (182.0) (3.5)	\$ 181.7 (47.5) (4.6) 0.6 (51.5) (130.7) (0.6)	(Non-guarantors) \$ 6.6 (42.8) (0.5) (43.3) (37.3) 75.0 (0.6) (1.3)		\$ 155.1 (90.3) (4.6) 0.1 (94.8) 75.0 (183.2) (4.8)
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business Other investing activities Cash flows used in investing activities Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net Issuance of debt Repayment of debt Other financing activities	\$ (33.2) 168.0 (182.0) (3.5)	\$ 181.7 (47.5) (4.6) 0.6 (51.5) (130.7) (0.6)	(Non-guarantors) \$ 6.6 (42.8) (0.5) (43.3) (37.3) 75.0 (0.6) (1.3)		\$ 155.1 (90.3) (4.6) 0.1 (94.8) 75.0 (183.2) (4.8)
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business Other investing activities Cash flows used in investing activities Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net Issuance of debt Repayment of debt Other financing activities Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities	\$ (33.2) 168.0 (182.0) (3.5) (17.5)	\$ 181.7 (47.5) (4.6) 0.6 (51.5) (130.7) (0.6)	(Non-guarantors) \$ 6.6 (42.8) (0.5) (43.3) (37.3) 75.0 (0.6) (1.3) 35.8		\$ 155.1 (90.3) (4.6) 0.1 (94.8) 75.0 (183.2) (4.8) (113.0)

Table of Contents 29

\$ 25.2

\$ 0.4

1.1

\$ 26.7

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

71/4% Senior Notes Due 2013, 7% Senior Notes Due 2015, and 83/8% Senior Subordinated Notes Due 2014

The Company s 7/4% Senior Notes due 2013, 7% Senior Notes due 2015, and 8 3/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014 are guaranteed by the following subsidiaries: Cincinnati Bell Entertainment Inc. (f/k/a ZoomTown.com Inc.), Cincinnati Bell Complete Protection Inc., Cincinnati Bell Any Distance Inc., Cincinnati Bell Telecommunication Services LLC, Cincinnati Bell Wireless Company, Cincinnati Bell Wireless LLC, GramTel Inc. (f/k/a BCSIVA Inc.), BRCOM Inc., CBTS, and IXC Internet Services Inc. The Parent Company owns directly or indirectly 100% of each guaranter and each guarantee is full and unconditional and joint and several. The Parent Company s subsidiaries generate substantially all of its income and cash flow and generally distribute or advance the funds necessary to meet the Parent Company s debt service obligations. Separately, in connection with a fifteen year contract for 25,000 square feet of data center space between CBTS, a guarantor subsidiary of these CBI notes, and a data center customer, CBI has guaranteed the performance obligations of CBTS in relation to providing the data center space and managed services under that long-term contract.

The following information sets forth the Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations and Cash Flows for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 and the Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 of (1) the Parent Company, as the issuer (2) the guarantor subsidiaries on a combined basis and (3) the non-guarantor subsidiaries on a combined basis.

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

	Parent	Three Months Ended June 30, 2008								
(dollars in millions)	(Issuer)	Gua	rantors	Non-guarantors		Eliminations		Total		
Revenue	\$	\$	195.8	\$	168.0	\$	(12.6)	\$ 351.2		
Operating costs and expenses	6.5		176.0		101.4		(12.6)	271.3		
Operating income (loss)	(6.5)		19.8		66.6			79.9		
Interest expense	29.9		5.4		4.9		(5.4)	34.8		
Other expense (income), net	(5.4)		0.1		(0.3)		5.4	(0.2)		
Income (loss) before income taxes	(31.0)		14.3		62.0			45.3		
Income tax expense (benefit)	(7.0)		6.0		20.7			19.7		
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of tax	49.6						(49.6)			
Net income	25.6		8.3		41.3		(49.6)	25.6		
Preferred stock dividends	2.6							2.6		
Net income applicable to common shareowners	\$ 23.0	\$	8.3	\$	41.3	\$	(49.6)	\$ 23.0		

	D (Three Months Ended June 30, 2007							
	Parent (Issuer)	Guarantors	Non-guarantors	Eliminations	Total				
Revenue	\$	\$ 163.8	\$ 175.4	\$ (10.1)	\$ 329.1				
Operating costs and expenses	6.0	146.2	105.9	(10.1)	248.0				
Operating income (loss)	(6.0)	17.6	69.5		81.1				
Interest expense	34.1	7.0	5.6	(7.7)	39.0				
Other expense (income), net	(8.1)	0.5	0.4	7.0	(0.2)				
Income (loss) before income taxes	(32.0)	10.1	63.5	0.7	42.3				
Income tax expense (benefit)	(7.5)	4.3	21.3		18.1				
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of tax	48.7			(48.7)					

Net income	24.2	5.8	42.2	(48.0)	24.2
Preferred stock dividends	2.6				2.6
Net income applicable to common shareowners	\$ 21.6	\$ 5.8	\$ 42.2	\$ (48.0)	\$ 21.6

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

C:	Mar	.tha	II.	1~4	T	20	2008

	Parent		_	,	
(dollars in millions)	(Issuer)	Guarantors	Non-guarantors	Eliminations	Total
Revenue	\$	\$ 386.8	\$ 337.5	\$ (24.6)	\$ 699.7
Operating costs and expenses	11.4	354.3	221.6	(24.6)	562.7
Operating income (loss)	(11.4)	32.5	115.9		137.0
Interest expense	61.8	10.0	9.9	(10.6)	71.1
Other expense (income), net	(12.2)	0.5	(0.3)	10.6	(1.4)
Income (loss) before income taxes	(61.0)	22.0	106.3		67.3
Income tax expense (benefit)	(16.0)	7.7	37.1		28.8
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of tax	83.5			(83.5)	
Net income	38.5	14.3	69.2	(83.5)	38.5
Preferred stock dividends	5.2				5.2
Net income applicable to common shareowners	\$ 33.3	\$ 14.3	\$ 69.2	\$ (83.5)	\$ 33.3

Six Months Ended June 30, 2007

		~								
	Parent	nt								
	(Issuer)	Guarantors	Non-guarantors	Eliminations	Total					
Revenue	\$	\$ 316.2	\$ 347.7	\$ (19.5)	\$ 644.4					
Operating costs and expenses	10.5	282.0	212.5	(19.5)	485.5					
Operating income (loss)	(10.5)	34.2	135.2		158.9					
Interest expense	70.8	13.7	9.7	(15.1)	79.1					
Other expense (income), net	(18.1)	0.4	1.1	14.4	(2.2)					
Income (loss) before income taxes	(63.2)	20.1	124.4	0.7	82.0					
Income tax expense (benefit)	(15.8)	7.0	44.1		35.3					
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of tax	94.1			(94.1)						
Net income	46.7	13.1	80.3	(93.4)	46.7					
Preferred stock dividends	5.2				5.2					
Net income applicable to common shareowners	\$ 41.5	\$ 13.1	\$ 80.3	\$ (93.4)	\$ 41.5					

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets

	Pa	rent	As of June 30, 2008								
(dollars in millions)		suer)	Gua	arantors	Non-guarantors		El	iminations	7	Total	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	18.9	\$	1.6	\$	0.9	\$		\$	21.4	
Receivables, net		2.0		67.7		112.4				182.1	
Other current assets		18.6		87.4		31.8		(21.5)		116.3	
Total current assets		39.5		156.7		145.1		(21.5)		319.8	
Property, plant and equipment, net		0.4		386.6		584.8				971.8	
Goodwill and intangibles, net				196.1		3.2				199.3	
Investments in and advances to subsidiaries	1,	057.8		13.3				(1,071.1)			
Other noncurrent assets		304.7		244.8		16.3		(25.6)		540.2	
Total assets	\$ 1,	402.4	\$	997.5	\$	749.4	\$	(1,118.2)	\$ 2	,031.1	
Current portion of long-term debt	\$	4.0	\$	3.9	\$	0.6	\$		\$	8.5	
Accounts payable				89.6		9.2				98.8	
Other current liabilities		83.9		56.9		61.0		(1.3)		200.5	
Total current liabilities		87.9		150.4		70.8		(1.3)		307.8	
Long-term debt, less current portion	1,	658.3		20.5		310.3		, ,	1	,989.1	
Other noncurrent liabilities		322.3		91.5		32.3		(45.8)		400.3	
Intercompany payables				429.9		59.6		(489.5)			
Total liabilities	2,	068.5		692.3		473.0		(536.6)	2	,697.2	
Shareowners equity (deficit)	(666.1)		305.2		276.4		(581.6)		(666.1)	
										•	
Total liabilities and shareowners equity (deficit)	\$ 1.	402.4	\$	997.5	\$	749.4	\$	(1,118.2)	\$ 2	,031.1	
	. ,							. ,			

As of December 31, 2007 Parent										
		uer)	Gua	arantors	Non-guarantors		Eli	iminations	7	Γotal
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	23.6	\$	0.8	\$	1.7	\$		\$	26.1
Receivables, net		0.1		61.3		115.1				176.5
Other current assets		14.9		87.1		31.4		(18.3)		115.1
Total current assets		38.6		149.2		148.2		(18.3)		317.7
Property, plant and equipment, net		0.3		345.2		588.2				933.7
Goodwill and intangibles, net				180.2		3.4				183.6
Investments in and advances to subsidiaries	1,0	36.4		26.8				(1,063.2)		
Other noncurrent assets	3	19.8		278.8		17.1		(31.1)		584.6
Total assets	\$ 1,3	395.1	\$	980.2	\$	756.9	\$	(1,112.6)	\$ 2	,019.6
Current portion of long-term debt	\$	4.0	\$	3.2	\$	0.6	\$		\$	7.8
Accounts payable				98.7		6.8				105.5
Other current liabilities		90.8		51.2		62.3				204.3

Edgar Filing: CINCINNATI BELL INC - Form 10-Q

Total current liabilities	94.8	153.1		69.7		317.6
Long-term debt, less current portion	1,671.4	19.9	3	10.6		2,001.9
Other noncurrent liabilities	296.5	66.6		54.0	(49.4)	367.7
Intercompany payables		430.2		82.8	(513.0)	
Total liabilities	2,062.7	669.8	5	17.1	(562.4)	2,687.2
Shareowners equity (deficit)	(667.6)	310.4	2	39.8	(550.2)	(667.6)
Total liabilities and shareowners equity (deficit)	\$ 1,395.1	\$ 980.2	\$ 7	56.9	\$ (1,112.6)	\$ 2,019.6

Ending cash and cash equivalents

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

		Six Months Ended June 30, 2008							
(dollars in millions)	Parent	Guarantors	Non anomantana	Eliminations	Total				
Cash flows provided by operating activities	(Issuer) \$	\$ 86.9	Non-guarantors \$ 101.0	\$	\$ 187.9				
eash nows provided by operating activities	Ψ	φ 60.9	φ 101.0	Ψ	ψ 107.9				
Capital expenditures	(0.3)	(59.2)	(43.7)		(103.2)				
Acquisitions of businesses	, ,	(19.3)	(2.3)		(21.6)				
Other investing activities	0.1	0.6	0.3		1.0				
Cash flows used in investing activities	(0.2)	(77.9)	(45.7)		(123.8)				
Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net	61.6	(5.8)	(55.8)						
Increase in corporate credit facility, net	31.0				31.0				
Repayment of debt	(41.9)	(2.4)	(0.3)		(44.6)				
Common stock repurchase	(47.0)				(47.0)				
Other financing activities	(8.2)				(8.2)				
Cash flows used in financing activities	(4.5)	(8.2)	(56.1)		(68.8)				
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	(4.7)	0.8	(0.8)		(4.7)				
Beginning cash and cash equivalents	23.6	0.8	1.7		26.1				
Ending cash and cash equivalents	\$ 18.9	\$ 1.6	\$ 0.9	\$	\$ 21.4				
		Six Months Ended June 30, 2007							
	D4			, 2007					
	Parent (Issuer)				Total				
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities	Parent (Issuer) \$ (33.2)	Guarantors \$ 142.8	Non-guarantors \$ 45.5	Eliminations \$	Total \$ 155.1				
	(Issuer)	Guarantors \$ 142.8	Non-guarantors \$ 45.5	Eliminations	\$ 155.1				
Capital expenditures	(Issuer)	Guarantors	Non-guarantors \$ 45.5 (46.1)	Eliminations	\$ 155.1 (90.3)				
	(Issuer)	Guarantors \$ 142.8	Non-guarantors \$ 45.5	Eliminations	\$ 155.1 (90.3)				
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business	(Issuer)	Guarantors \$ 142.8 (44.2)	Non-guarantors \$ 45.5 (46.1) (4.6)	Eliminations	(90.3) (4.6) 0.1				
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business Other investing activities Cash flows used in investing activities	(Issuer) \$ (33.2)	Guarantors \$ 142.8 (44.2) (0.5) (44.7)	Non-guarantors \$ 45.5 (46.1) (4.6) 0.6 (50.1)	Eliminations	(90.3) (4.6) 0.1				
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business Other investing activities Cash flows used in investing activities Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net	(Issuer)	Guarantors \$ 142.8 (44.2)	Non-guarantors \$ 45.5 (46.1) (4.6) 0.6 (50.1) (69.6)	Eliminations	\$ 155.1 (90.3) (4.6) 0.1 (94.8)				
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business Other investing activities Cash flows used in investing activities Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net Issuance of debt	(Issuer) \$ (33.2)	Guarantors \$ 142.8 (44.2) (0.5) (44.7) (98.4)	Non-guarantors \$ 45.5 (46.1) (4.6) 0.6 (50.1) (69.6) 75.0	Eliminations	\$ 155.1 (90.3) (4.6) 0.1 (94.8)				
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business Other investing activities Cash flows used in investing activities Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net	(Issuer) \$ (33.2)	Guarantors \$ 142.8 (44.2) (0.5) (44.7)	Non-guarantors \$ 45.5 (46.1) (4.6) 0.6 (50.1) (69.6)	Eliminations	\$ 155.1 (90.3) (4.6) 0.1 (94.8)				
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business Other investing activities Cash flows used in investing activities Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net Issuance of debt Repayment of debt	(Issuer) \$ (33.2) 168.0 (182.0)	Guarantors \$ 142.8 (44.2) (0.5) (44.7) (98.4)	Non-guarantors \$ 45.5 (46.1) (4.6) 0.6 (50.1) (69.6) 75.0 (0.6)	Eliminations	\$ 155.1 (90.3) (4.6) 0.1 (94.8) 75.0 (183.2) (4.8)				
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business Other investing activities Cash flows used in investing activities Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net Issuance of debt Repayment of debt Other financing activities Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities	(Issuer) \$ (33.2) 168.0 (182.0) (3.5) (17.5)	Guarantors \$ 142.8 (44.2) (0.5) (44.7) (98.4) (0.6)	Non-guarantors \$ 45.5 (46.1) (4.6) 0.6 (50.1) (69.6) 75.0 (0.6) (1.3) 3.5	Eliminations	\$ 155.1 (90.3) (4.6) 0.1 (94.8) 75.0 (183.2) (4.8)				
Capital expenditures Acquisition of business Other investing activities Cash flows used in investing activities Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net Issuance of debt Repayment of debt Other financing activities	(Issuer) \$ (33.2) 168.0 (182.0) (3.5)	Guarantors \$ 142.8 (44.2) (0.5) (44.7) (98.4)	Non-guarantors \$ 45.5 (46.1) (4.6) 0.6 (50.1) (69.6) 75.0 (0.6) (1.3)	Eliminations	\$ 155.1 (90.3) (4.6) 0.1 (94.8) 75.0 (183.2) (4.8)				

Table of Contents 36

\$ 25.2

1.1

0.4

\$ 26.7

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Information included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains certain forward-looking statements that involve potential risks and uncertainties. The Company s future results could differ materially from those discussed herein. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed herein and those discussed in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements that speak only as of the date thereof.

The Company was initially incorporated under the laws of Ohio in 1983 and remains incorporated under the laws of Ohio. It has its principal executive offices at 221 East Fourth Street, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202 (telephone number (513) 397-9900 and website address http://www.cincinnatibell.com). The Company makes available its reports on Form 10-K, 10-Q, and 8-K (as well as all amendments to these reports) on its website, free of charge, at the Investor Relations section as soon as practicable after they have been electronically filed.

The Company files annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC) under the Exchange Act. These reports and other information filed by the Company may be read and copied at the Public Reference Room of the SEC, 100 F Street N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Information may be obtained about the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy statements, and other information about issuers, like the Company, which file electronically with the SEC. The address of that site is http://www.sec.gov.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements requires the Company to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses. In the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company identified critical accounting policies that affect its more significant estimates and assumptions used in preparing its Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. These critical accounting policies include revenue recognition, accounting for allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable, reviewing the carrying values of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets, reviewing the carrying values of property, plant and equipment, accounting for business combinations, accounting for taxes, accounting for pension and postretirement expenses, and accounting for termination benefits.

Results of Operations

The financial results for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 referred to in this discussion should be read in conjunction with the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Results for interim periods may not be indicative of the results for subsequent periods or the full year.

CONSOLIDATED OVERVIEW

Consolidated revenue totaled \$351.2 million for the second quarter of 2008, an increase of \$22.1 million compared to the second quarter of 2007. The increase was primarily due to the following:

\$21.0 million higher revenues in the Technology Solutions segment primarily due to higher telephony and IT equipment distribution revenue and data center and managed services revenue; and

\$4.8 million higher revenues in the Wireless segment primarily due to increased postpaid service revenue from additional subscribers

For the six months ended June 30, 2008, consolidated revenue increased \$55.3 million to \$699.7 million as compared to \$644.4 million for the same period in 2007. The increase was primarily due to the following:

\$47.2 million higher revenues in the Technology Solutions segment primarily due to higher telephony and IT equipment distribution revenue and data center and managed services revenue; and

\$14.8 million higher revenues in the Wireless segment primarily due to increased service revenue from additional postpaid subscribers and increased average revenue per user (ARPU).

23

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Operating income for the second quarter of 2008 was \$79.9 million, a decrease of \$1.2 million compared to the same period in 2007. The decrease was primarily due to the following:

- \$1.8 million decrease in Wireline segment operating income primarily due to restructuring costs;
- \$1.7 million increase in corporate expenses primarily due to income in 2007 from the reversal of certain operating tax reserves; and
- \$2.0 million increase in Wireless segment operating income due primarily to additional subscribers.

 Operating income for the six months ended June 30, 2008 was \$137.0 million, a decrease of \$21.9 million compared to the same period in the prior year. This decrease was primarily due to the following:
 - \$27.1 million decrease in Wireline segment operating income primarily due to a \$23.2 million increase in restructuring costs and asset impairment charge; and

\$6.7 million increase in Wireless segment operating income due to additional subscribers and higher ARPU. Interest expense was \$34.8 million for the second quarter of 2008 and \$71.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 as compared to \$39.0 million for the second quarter of 2007 and \$79.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007. The decrease compared to last year is primarily attributable to lower interest rates and lower debt balances.

Other income of \$1.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 consisted primarily of a gain on the extinguishment of debt related to the purchase and extinguishment of \$41.6 million of the $8\frac{3}{8}$ Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014. Other income of \$2.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 consisted primarily of a one-time dividend received from a cost investment.

Income tax expense of \$19.7 million for the second quarter of 2008 was slightly higher compared to the second quarter of 2007 primarily due to higher pre-tax income. Income tax expense for the six months ended June 30, 2008 was \$28.8 million as compared to \$35.3 million for the same period in 2007 primarily due to lower pre-tax income.

The Company has certain non-deductible expenses, including interest on securities originally issued to acquire its broadband business (the Broadband Securities) or securities that the Company has subsequently issued to refinance the Broadband Securities. In periods without tax law changes, the Company expects its effective tax rate to exceed statutory rates primarily due to the non-deductible expenses associated with the Broadband Securities. The Company estimates that its effective income tax rate will be approximately 43% for the full year 2008. However, the Company expects to use federal and state net operating loss carryforwards to substantially defray payment of federal and state tax liabilities in 2008. The Company expects income tax payments for 2008 to be approximately \$5 million.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Discussion of Operating Segment Results

WIRELINE

	Three Months Ended June 30,			Six Months Ended June 30,				
(dollars in millions)	2008	2007	\$ Change	% Change	2008	2007	\$ Change	% Change
Revenue:								
Voice - local service	\$ 98.9	\$ 110.3	\$ (11.4)	(10)%	\$ 199.9	\$ 223.0	\$ (23.1)	(10)%
Data	67.9	63.5	4.4	7%	135.5	126.0	9.5	8%
Long distance and VoIP	24.6	19.8	4.8	24%	48.9	38.5	10.4	27%
Other	11.1	10.5	0.6	6%	20.8	20.3	0.5	2%
Total revenue	202.5	204.1	(1.6)	(1)%	405.1	407.8	(2.7)	(1)%
Operating costs and expenses:								
Cost of services and products	66.4	67.7	(1.3)	(2)%	133.9	133.1	0.8	1%
Selling, general and administrative	39.6	38.4	1.2	3%	78.5	76.3	2.2	3%
Depreciation	24.8	26.0	(1.2)	(5)%	49.7	52.0	(2.3)	(4)%
Amortization	0.3		0.3	n/m	0.5		0.5	n/m
Restructuring charges	1.2		1.2	n/m	24.4	2.4	22.0	n/m
Asset impairment				n/m	1.2		1.2	n/m
Total operating costs and expenses	132.3	132.1	0.2	0%	288.2	263.8	24.4	9%
Operating income	\$ 70.2	\$ 72.0	\$ (1.8)	(3)%	\$ 116.9	\$ 144.0	\$ (27.1)	(19)%
Operating meome	Ψ 10.2	Ψ /2.0	ψ (1.0)	(3) 70	ψ 110.9	Ψ 177.0	ψ (27.1)	(19)70
Operating margin	34.7%	35.3%		(0.6) pts	28.9%	35.3%		(6.4) pts
Capital expenditures	\$ 25.5	\$ 25.1	\$ 0.4	2%	\$ 46.4	\$ 48.5	\$ (2.1)	(4)%

The Wireline segment consists of the operations of Cincinnati Bell Telephone Company LLC, which operates as an Incumbent Local Exchange Carrier (ILEC) within the Company s traditional territory, Cincinnati Bell Extended Territories LLC, which operates as a Competitive Local Exchange Carrier (CLEC) in Dayton, Ohio and communities adjacent to the ILEC s northern borders, Cincinnati Bell Any Distance Inc. (CBAD), which provides long distance, audio conferencing and voice over internet protocol (VoIP) services, Cincinnati Bell Complete Protection Inc., which provides security monitoring services and related surveillance hardware, the Company s payphone business and its entertainment operations, which currently offers cable television primarily in Lebanon, Ohio and DirecTV on a commission basis to the remainder of its operating territory.

In February 2008, CBAD completed the acquisition of eGIX Inc. (eGIX), a CLEC provider of advanced data and voice services to businesses in Indiana and Illinois for \$18.1 million and contingent consideration of up to \$5.2 million.

In June 2008, the Company purchased the Dayton, Ohio operations of CenturyTel for \$1.5 million. The purchase includes access lines to small and medium-size customers and fiber network throughout the Dayton metro area.

Revenue

Voice local service revenue includes local service, value added services, switched access and information services. Voice revenue decreased in both the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 versus the same periods in 2007 primarily as a result of a 7% decrease in access lines.

Access lines within the segment s ILEC territory decreased by 66,000, or 8%, from 807,000 at June 30, 2007 to 741,000 at June 30, 2008. The access line loss resulted from several factors including customers electing to use wireless communication in lieu of the traditional local service, Company-initiated disconnections of customers with credit problems, and customers electing to use service from other providers. The Company

has partially offset its access line loss in its ILEC territory by continuing to target voice services to residential and business customers in its CLEC territory. The Company had approximately 65,000 CLEC access lines at June 30, 2008, which is a 16% increase from June 30, 2007.

25

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Data revenue consists of data transport, high-speed Internet access (DSL), dial-up Internet access, digital trunking, and Local Area Network interconnection services. Data revenue increased \$4.4 million and \$9.5 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same periods a year ago. The increase primarily resulted from higher DSL and data transport revenue. Data transport revenues increased by \$3.2 million and \$6.3 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, respectively, compared to the same periods a year ago primarily due to increased usage by CBW and third party users. Revenue also increased by an additional \$1.5 million and \$3.5 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, respectively, compared to the prior year periods primarily due to an increase in DSL subscribers.

Long distance and VoIP revenue increased \$4.8 million and \$10.4 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, respectively, as compared to the same periods in 2007. The revenue increases primarily resulted from the acquisition of eGIX, which generated revenue of \$3.5 million and \$5.9 million in the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2008, respectively. The remaining increase in both periods was primarily due to an increase in minutes of use for long distance, VoIP and new broadband services. The Company had 536,000 subscribed long distance access lines as of June 30, 2008 in the Cincinnati and Dayton, Ohio operating areas compared to 552,000 as of June 30, 2007. The decrease in subscribers was due to a 7% decline in residential lines partially offset by an 8% increase in business subscribers.

The Company believes its rate of access line loss would have been greater and its increase in DSL subscribers would have been less without the success of its Super Bundle Custom Connections The Company s Super Bundle offers local, long distance, wireless, internet access and the Company s value added services package, Home Phone Pak, at a price lower than the amount the customer would pay for the services individually. In its traditional operating area, the Company added approximately 6,000 Super Bundle subscribers from June 30, 2007 bringing total subscribers to 183,000 as of June 30, 2008 and penetration of in-territory primary residential access lines to 41%. This package has increased the demand for and increased subscriber retention of the Company s ZoomTown DSL offering. The number of DSL subscribers increased by 7,000 subscribers during the six months ended June 30, 2008 to bring total subscribers to 229,000.

Costs and Expenses

Cost of services and products decreased by \$1.3 million and increased \$0.8 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 as compared to the corresponding periods in 2007. The decrease in the second quarter was due to a \$3.2 million decrease in payroll costs, primarily from lower pension and postretirement expenses, and a \$0.4 million decrease in operating taxes partially offset by an increase of \$1.6 million due to the acquisition of eGIX and increased network costs primarily due to growth in long distance, VoIP, and broadband services revenues. The increase in cost of services and products for the six months ended June 30, 2008 was primarily due to an increase of \$2.7 million resulting from the acquisition of eGIX, a \$2.3 million increase in network costs due to growth in the long distance, VoIP, and broadband services revenues, and a \$1.3 million increase due to the settlement of an inter-carrier reciprocal compensation claim in 2007. These increases were partially offset by a \$5.4 million decrease in payroll costs, primarily from lower pension and postretirement expenses.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased \$1.2 million and \$2.2 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, respectively, versus the comparable periods in 2007 due primarily to the acquisition of eGIX offset by lower pension and postretirement expenses.

Restructuring expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2008 resulted from an early retirement option offered by the Company and accepted by certain eligible union employees during the first quarter of 2008. See Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further information. Restructuring expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2007 were primarily due to severance costs associated with the outsourcing of certain accounting functions and the reduction in workforce of various other administrative functions.

The asset impairment charge of \$1.2 million expensed during the six months ended June 30, 2008 related to software that is no longer being used.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

WIRELESS

	Three Months Ended June 30,			Six Months Ended June 30,				
(dollars in millions, except for operating metrics)	2008	2007	\$ Change	% Change	2008	2007	\$ Change	% Change
Revenue:			_					
Service	\$ 72.3	\$ 67.4	\$ 4.9	7%	\$ 144.3	\$ 129.7	\$ 14.6	11%
Equipment	6.0	6.1	(0.1)	(2)%	12.5	12.3	0.2	2%
Total revenue	78.3	73.5	4.8	7%	156.8	142.0	14.8	10%
Operating costs and expenses:								
Cost of services and products	40.6	37.4	3.2	9%	80.6	72.1	8.5	12%
Selling, general and administrative	16.8	16.5	0.3	2%	33.6	33.6		0%
Depreciation	8.1	8.6	(0.5)	(6)%	16.5	16.9	(0.4)	(2)%
Amortization	0.5	0.7	(0.2)	(29)%	1.1	1.5	(0.4)	(27)%
Restructuring charges				n/m	0.4		0.4	n/m
Total operating costs and expenses	66.0	63.2	2.8	4%	132.2	124.1	8.1	7%
Operating income	\$ 12.3	\$ 10.3	\$ 2.0	19%	\$ 24.6	\$ 17.9	\$ 6.7	37%
1 0								
Operating margin	15.7%	14.0%)	1.7 pts	15.7%	12.6%	6	3.1 pts
Operating metrics								
Postpaid ARPU*	\$ 47.36	\$ 47.78	\$ (0.42)	(1)%	\$ 47.39	\$ 46.36	\$ 1.03	2%
Prepaid ARPU*	\$ 25.75	\$ 22.44	\$ 3.31	15%	\$ 26.49	\$ 22.95	\$ 3.54	15%
Capital expenditures	\$ 6.6	\$ 6.6	\$	0%	\$ 24.0	\$ 12.8	\$ 11.2	88%

^{*} The Company has presented certain information regarding monthly average revenue per user (ARPU) because the Company believes ARPU provides a useful measure of the operational performance of its Wireless segment. ARPU is calculated by dividing service revenue by the average subscriber base for the period.

Revenue

Service revenue increased by \$4.9 million in the second quarter of 2008 as compared to last year primarily due to the following:

Postpaid service revenue increased \$3.5 million due to an increase in subscribers. Postpaid subscribers increased 7% from 383,000 subscribers at June 30, 2007 to 410,000 at June 30, 2008. Net postpaid subscribers of 5,000 were added during the second quarter of 2008 compared to net additions of 7,000 subscribers in the second quarter of 2007. The Company continues to add subscribers due to a combination of attractive rate plans, extensive retail distribution, and network performance. The average monthly churn was 1.71% for 2008 and 1.50% in the second quarter of 2007.

Prepaid service revenue increased \$1.4 million compared to the same period last year primarily due to the increase in ARPU of \$3.31. The number of prepaid subscribers at June 30, 2008 was 165,000, down from 172,000 prepaid subscribers at June 30, 2007. The Company has focused its marketing on higher usage rate plans, which has driven higher ARPU but led to the decrease in the number of prepaid subscribers.

For the six months ended June 30, 2008, service revenue increased \$14.6 million compared to the same period in 2007 primarily due to an \$11.0 million increase in postpaid revenue resulting from an increase in both subscribers and ARPU, which was driven by a 42% increase in data revenue. Prepaid service revenue increased \$3.6 million primarily due to higher ARPU.

Equipment revenue was relatively flat for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to last year.

27

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Costs and Expenses

Cost of services and products consists largely of network operation costs, interconnection expenses with other telecommunications providers, roaming expense (which is incurred for subscribers to use their handsets in the territories of other wireless service providers), and cost of handsets and accessories sold. These expenses increased \$3.2 million during the second quarter of 2008 and \$8.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 versus the prior year periods. The second quarter increase was primarily attributable to an increase in network costs due to a higher number of subscribers and increased usage per subscriber. Costs for the six months ended June 30, 2008 versus the prior year increased primarily due to \$6.9 million in higher network costs to support a higher number of subscribers and increased usage per subscriber and a \$1.0 million increase in handset subsidies.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased \$0.3 million for the second quarter of 2008 and were flat for the first six months of 2008 as compared to the same periods in 2007. The increase in the second quarter was primarily due to higher commissions as a result of a higher number of activations. Costs for the six months ended June 30, 2008 were unchanged from the prior year as lower advertising expense of \$1.1 million offset \$0.6 million of increased contract and professional service fees and \$0.3 million higher bad debt expense.

TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS

	Three Months Ended June 30,			Six Months Ended June 30,				
(dollars in millions)	2008	2007	\$ Change	% Change	2008	2007	\$ Change	% Change
Revenue:								
Telecom and IT equipment distribution	\$ 50.1	\$ 39.7	\$ 10.4	26%	\$ 99.8	\$ 72.1	\$ 27.7	38%
Data center and managed services	24.9	15.4	9.5	62%	46.6	29.8	16.8	56%
Professional services	3.5	2.4	1.1	46%	6.8	4.1	2.7	66%
Total revenue	78.5	57.5	21.0	37%	153.2	106.0	47.2	45%
Operating costs and expenses:								
Cost of services and products	60.4	45.7	14.7	32%	118.3	83.6	34.7	42%
Selling, general and administrative	9.8	6.3	3.5	56%	19.9	13.1	6.8	52%
Depreciation	3.5	1.4	2.1	n/m	6.3	2.6	3.7	n/m
Amortization	0.4	0.1	0.3	n/m	0.8	0.2	0.6	n/m
Restructuring	0.1		0.1	n/m	0.4		0.4	n/m
Total operating costs and expenses	74.2	53.5	20.7	39%	145.7	99.5	46.2	46%
1 0 1								
Operating income	\$ 4.3	\$ 4.0	\$ 0.3	8%	\$ 7.5	\$ 6.5	\$ 1.0	15%
Operating margin	5.5%	7.0%		(1.5) pts	4.9%	6.1%		(1.2) pts
Capital expenditures	\$ 10.4	\$ 16.3	\$ (5.9)	(36)%	\$ 32.6	\$ 29.0	\$ 3.6	12%
The Technology Solutions segment consis	to of Cincing	oti Dall T	achnology S	olutions Inc. (C	DTC \ and	Gram Tal In	o (CromT	al) which we

The Technology Solutions segment consists of Cincinnati Bell Technology Solutions Inc. (CBTS) and GramTel Inc. (GramTel), which was purchased on December 31, 2007.

Revenue

Revenue from telecom and IT equipment distribution represents the sale, installation and maintenance of major, branded IT and telephony equipment. Revenue increased by \$10.4 million in the second quarter of 2008 and \$27.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 as compared to the same periods a year ago. The increase primarily was due to higher telephony and IT equipment sales of \$10.7 million in the second quarter of 2008 and \$28.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 partially offset by lower installation and maintenance services.

Data center and managed services revenue consists of recurring collocation payments from customers residing in the Company s data centers, managed VoIP solutions, and IT services that include network management, electronic data storage, disaster recovery, and data security management. Revenue increased \$9.5 million for the second quarter of 2008 and \$16.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 as compared to the same periods a year ago primarily due to increased product penetration within managed services and increased billable data center space. Data center billed utilization was 87% on approximately 202,000 square feet of data center capacity at June 30, 2008, which includes 22,000 square feet of GramTel data center capacity, compared to billed utilization of 96% on approximately 111,000 square feet of data center capacity at June 30, 2007. The Company intends to continue to pursue additional customers and growth in its data center business, for which the Company is prepared to commit resources, including capital expenditures and working capital, to support this growth.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Professional services revenue consists of long-term and short-term IT outsourcing and consulting engagements. Revenue for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 increased by \$1.1 million and \$2.7 million compared to the same periods in 2007. The Company has expanded its team of recruiting and hiring personnel in order to focus on selling these outsourcing and consulting engagements.

Costs and Expenses

Cost of services and products increased by \$14.7 million in the second quarter of 2008 and \$34.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 as compared to the same periods in 2007. The increase in the second quarter primarily resulted from a \$10.5 million increase in cost of goods sold related to the increase in telephony and IT equipment sales, a \$3.1 million increase for higher payroll related costs due to growth in the data center and managed services and professional services revenue, increased data center facilities costs and the acquisition of GramTel. The increase for the six months ending June 30, 2008 was primarily due to a \$26.0 million increase in cost of goods sold related to the increase in telephony and IT equipment sales, a \$6.2 million increase for higher payroll related costs due to growth in the data center and managed services and professional services revenue, increased data center facilities costs and the acquisition of GramTel.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by \$3.5 million and \$6.8 million for the second quarter of 2008 and the six months ended June 30, 2008, respectively. The increase in the second quarter primarily resulted from an increase in labor and employee related costs of \$2.6 million to support the growing operations and the acquisition of GramTel. The increase for the six months ending June 30, 2008 was primarily due to a \$4.2 million increase in labor and employee related costs to support the growing operations, higher operating taxes and the acquisition of GramTel.

The increase in depreciation expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 was primarily due to capital expenditures associated with expanding data center capacity.

The increase in amortization expense resulted from the allocation of a portion of the purchase price to the customer relationship intangible asset associated with the GramTel acquisition in December 2007.

Financial Condition, Liquidity, and Capital Resources

As of June 30, 2008, the Company held \$21.4 million in cash and cash equivalents. The Company s primary sources of cash for the remainder of 2008 will be cash generated by operations and borrowings from the Corporate credit facility under which the Company had \$136.9 million of availability at June 30, 2008. Cash flows from operations totaled \$308.8 million in 2007 and included payments totaling \$56 million for operating taxes and early pension contributions that the Company does not expect will be required in 2008. Additionally, the Company expects that lower interest rates and debt balances will reduce its interest payments by approximately \$10 million as compared to 2007.

In 2008, the Company expects to spend approximately 16% of 2008 revenue on capital expenditures (revenue for 2008 is expected to be approximately \$1.4 billion). Other uses of cash for the remainder of 2008 will include repayments of debt and related interest, dividends on the 6³/4% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, and working capital. Additionally, in February 2008, the Company s Board of Directors approved the repurchase of up to \$150 million of the Company s outstanding common stock over the period 2008 through 2009, of which \$47.0 million was purchased during the six months ended June 30, 2008.

The Company believes the cash generated by its operations and borrowings from its Corporate credit facility are sufficient to fund its primary uses of cash.

The Corporate credit facility financial covenants require that the Company maintain certain leverage ratios, interest coverage, and fixed charge ratios. The facility also contains certain covenants which, among other things, limit the Company s ability to incur additional debt or liens, pay dividends, repurchase Company common stock, sell, transfer, lease, or dispose of assets, and make investments or merge with another company. If the Company were to violate any of its covenants and was unable to obtain a waiver, it would be considered a default. If the Company were in default under its credit facilities, no additional borrowings under the credit facilities would be available until the default was waived or cured. The Company is in compliance and expects to remain in compliance with its Corporate credit facility covenants.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

The Company s public debt, which include the #4% Senior Notes due 2013 (#4% Notes due 2013), 8/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014 (8/8% Notes), and the 7% Notes due 2015 (7% Notes), contain covenants that, among other things, limit the Company s ability to incur additional debt or liens, pay dividends or make other restricted payments, sell, transfer, lease, or dispose of assets and make investments or merge with another company. Restricted payments include common stock dividends, repurchase of common stock, and certain other public debt repayments. The Company currently has sufficient ability under its public debt indentures to make its intended restricted payments in 2008. The Company is in compliance and expects to remain in compliance with its public debt indentures.

Cash Flows

For the six months ended June 30, 2008, cash provided by operating activities totaled \$187.9 million, an increase of \$32.8 million compared to the \$155.1 million provided by operating activities during the same period in 2007. The increase was primarily due to a customer prepayment of \$21.5 million for data center services and lower interest payments.

Cash flow utilized for investing activities increased \$29.0 million to \$123.8 million during the six months of 2008 as compared to \$94.8 million for the six months of 2007. For the six months ended June 30, 2008, the Company paid \$21.6 million related to the acquisition of businesses, \$18.1 million of which related to the purchase of eGIX. In 2007, the Company purchased a local telecommunication business and paid \$4.6 million. Capital expenditures were \$12.9 million higher for the six months ended June 30, 2008 versus last year due primarily to the construction of the wireless 3G network.

Cash flow used in financing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2008 was \$68.8 million compared to \$113.0 million during the same period in 2007. For the six months ended June 30, 2008, the Company used cash flows from operations to purchase and extinguish \$41.6 million of 8 ³/8 % Notes and to repurchase \$47.0 million of the Company s common stock as part of its two-year \$150 million common stock repurchase plan. Borrowings under the Corporate credit facility increased by \$31.0 million in the six months ended June 30, 2008 to partially fund the Company s investing activity. In the six months ended June 30, 2007, the Company repaid \$180 million of the Tranche B Term Loan, utilizing \$75 million from borrowings under the accounts receivables securitization facility. For the six months ended June 30, 2008, the Company paid preferred stock dividends of \$7.8 million compared to \$5.2 million in the prior year period. The increase was due to the payment of an additional \$2.6 million quarterly preferred stock dividend during the second quarter of 2008 due to timing. For the full year 2008, the Company expects preferred stock dividend payments to be \$10.4 million, consistent with 2007.

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Company is subject to various regulatory and tax proceedings, lawsuits, claims and other matters. The Company believes adequate provision has been made for all such asserted and unasserted claims in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Such matters are subject to many uncertainties and outcomes that are not predictable with assurance.

Anthem Demutualization Claim

In November 2007, a class action complaint was filed against the Company and Wellpoint Inc., formerly known as Anthem, Inc. The complaint alleges that the Company improperly received stock as a result of the demutualization of Anthem and that a class of insured persons should have received the stock instead. In February 2008, the Company filed a response in which it denied all liability and raised a number of defenses. The Company believes that it has meritorious defenses and intends to vigorously defend this action. The Company does not believe this claim will have a material effect on its financial condition.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Other

Labor Contract

On January 31, 2008, the Company and the Communication Workers of America (CWA) reached a tentative agreement on a new labor contract. The new agreement, which covers approximately 1,300 members of the CWA locals 4400 and 4401, was ratified by the local CWA membership on February 27, 2008 and includes the following:

Retains the current call center work as local Cincinnati jobs, restructures base pay for the call center employees and implements a sales commission plan for eligible call center employees;

Creates a new wage, benefit and working condition agreement for bargaining unit employees hired on or after February 1, 2008;

Provides a cumulative 4.5 percent wage increase over the three years of the contract;

Maintains current healthcare plan designs with modest premium increases over the life of the contract, reflective of healthcare inflation;

Improves dental coverage by increasing the amounts covered under the plan for restorative services;

Increases pay-related pension credits by 3%; and

Offers an early retirement option to eligible bargaining unit employees.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The Company is exposed to the impact of interest rate fluctuations on its indebtedness. The Company attempts to maintain an optimal balance of fixed rate and variable rate indebtedness in order to attain low overall borrowing costs over time while mitigating exposure to interest rate fluctuations. The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage its balance of fixed rate and variable rate indebtedness. In 2004 and 2005, the Company entered into long-term interest rate swaps with notional amounts totaling \$450 million to change the fixed rate nature of a portion of the 7% Notes and the 8 ³/8% Notes to floating rate debt (long-term interest rate swaps long-term interest rate swaps qualify for fair value hedge accounting. As of June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the fair value of these interest rate swap contracts was an asset of \$2.5 million and \$2.9 million, respectively, for which the Company sunderlying hedged debt is adjusted by the same corresponding value in accordance with SFAS No. 133.

In May 2008, the Company entered into six-month interest rate swap contracts with notional amounts totaling \$450 million, which effectively fixed the floating interest rates for the second half of 2008 on the long-term interest rate swaps. The Company did not designate these swaps as hedging instruments under SFAS No. 133, which results in the change in the fair value of these instruments being recognized in earnings during each period. At June 30, 2008, the fair value of these interest rate swap contracts was an asset of \$0.1 million with the offsetting amount included in Other income, net in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Subsequent Event

In July 2008, the Company entered into additional six-month interest rate swap contracts with notional amounts totaling \$450 million, which effectively fixed the floating interest rates in the first half of 2009 on the long-term interest rate swaps. The Company elected not to designate these swaps as hedging instruments under SFAS No. 133, which will result in the change in the fair value of these instruments being recognized in earnings during each period.

Refer to the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 for further information on the Company s hedging activities.

31

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.

The term disclosure controls and procedures (defined in SEC Rule 13a-15(e)) refers to the controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Exchange Act) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within required time periods. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Cincinnati Bell Inc. s management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by the report. Based on that evaluation, Cincinnati Bell Inc. s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by the report, such controls and procedures were effective.

(b) Changes in internal controls over financial reporting.

The term internal control over financial reporting (defined in SEC Rule 13a-15(f)) refers to the process of a company that is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Cincinnati Bell Inc. s management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, have evaluated any changes in the Company s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the second quarter of 2008, and they have concluded that there was no change to Cincinnati Bell Inc. s internal control over financial reporting in the second quarter of 2008 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, Cincinnati Bell Inc. s internal control over financial reporting.

Form 10-Q Part II Cincinnati Bell Inc.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There have been no material changes to the Company s risk factors as listed in the Company s 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K. Refer to the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 for further information.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

During the three month period ended June 30, 2008, the Company had no unregistered sales of equity securities.

The following table provides information regarding the Company s purchases of its common stock for the quarter ended June 30, 2008:

	Total Number of Shares (or Units) Purchased*	Average Price Paid per Share (or Unit)	Total Number of Shares (or Units) Purchased as Part of Publicly Announced Plans or Programs **	Approximate Dollar Value of Shares that May Yet Be Purchased Under the Plans or Programs (in millions) ***	
4/1/2008-4/30/2008	1,343,110	\$ 4.45	1,340,100	\$	127.4
5/1/2008-5/31/2008	2,446,700	4.46	2,446,700		116.4
6/1/2008-6/30/2008	3,251,900	4.14	3,251,900		103.0

^{*} The period 4/1/2008-4/30/2008 includes 3,010 shares purchased at market value for certain deferred compensation plans.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Information is incorporated herein by reference to Part II, Item 4, of the Company s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2008.

Item 5. Other Information

None.

^{**} In February 2008, the Company s Board of Directors approved the repurchase of the Company s outstanding common stock in an amount up to \$150 million during 2008 and 2009.

Form 10-Q Part II Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Item 6. Exhibits

(a) Exhibits.

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), are incorporated herein by reference as exhibits hereto.

Exhibit Number (10)	DESCRIPTION Employment Agreement effective August 1, 2008 between the Company and Gary J. Wojtaszek (Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K, date of Report July 10, 2008, File No. 1-8519).
(31.1)+	Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
(31.2)+	Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
(32.1)+	Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
(32.2)+	Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Filed herewith.

The Company s reports on Form 10-K, 10-Q, and 8-K are available free of charge in the Investor Relations section of the Company s website: http://www.cincinnatibell.com. The Company will furnish any other exhibit at cost.

Form 10-Q Part II Cincinnati Bell Inc.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Date: July 31, 2008 /s/ Brian A. Ross

Brian A. Ross

Chief Operating Officer

Date: July 31, 2008 /s/ Kurt Freyberger

Kurt Freyberger

Vice President and Controller

35